
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Mr Bill Badrock  

Parish Councillor Bernie Allen  

Parish Councillor Canon David Felix  

Mr Robert Garner  

Mr Tony Luxton  

Mrs Anita Morris  

Councillor Peter Murray Conservative 

Councillor Stan Parker Labour 

Councillor Linda Redhead Liberal Democrat 

Councillor John Swain Labour 

Councillor Kevan Wainwright Labour 

 
 
 
Please contact Angela Scott on 0151 471 7529 or 
angela.scott@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Committee is on Wednesday, 23 February 2011 
 

Standards Committee 
 
Wednesday, 5 January 2011 at 3.00 p.m. 
Committee Room 1, Runcorn Town Hall 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

1 - 3 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests (subject 
to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for Members), to 
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item. 
 
 

 
 

3. RECENT CASE SUMMARIES FROM STANDARDS FOR 
ENGLAND 

 

4 - 15 

4. ABOLITION OF STANDARDS REGIME 
 

16 - 24 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
At a meeting of the Standards Committee Wednesday, 10 November 2010 Committee 
Room 1, Runcorn Town Hall 
 
 

 
Present: Mr B. Badrock (Chairman) , Parish Councillor Mr B Allen, Mr R. Garner, 
Mr A. Luxton, and Councillors Parker, Redhead and Swain  
 
Apologies for Absence: Parish Councillor D. Felix, Mrs A. Morris, and  
Councillors Murray and Wainwright 
 
Absence declared on Council business:  None 
 
Officers present: M. Reaney and A. Scott 
 
Also in attendance:  None 

 

 
 
 Action 

STC13 MINUTES  
  
 The minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 

2010, having been printed and circulated, were signed as a 
correct record. 
  

 

   
STC14 DUAL -HATTED MEMBERS AND THE CODE OF 

CONDUCT 
 

  
  The Committee received a report of the Strategic 

Director, Resources on Dual-Hatted Members and the Code 
of Conduct. 
 

Standards for England had recently published an 
online guide for Dual-Hatted Members, defined as Members 
who served on two or more relevant authorities, for instance 
a Member who was both a District and Parish Council 
Member. The guide particularly focused on when such 
Members must declare interests and also dealt with the 
question of pre-determination. 

 
The Committee discussed the potential conflict of 

interests for such Members and the issue of pre-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEMS DEALT WITH  
UNDER DUTIES  

EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE 
 

 

Agenda Item 1Page 1



determination or bias where Members sat on different 
bodies which determined matters such as planning 
applications or other regulatory issues. The Monitoring 
Officer was asked to identify the existence of any Dual-
Hatted Members within the Authority and to forward to them 
the link for the online guide with an explanatory note. 
 

Of particular interest were scenarios set out within the 
on-line version of the guidance; Members were advised that 
these could be completed as individuals or as a group. 

 
 RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

  

 
 
 
Monitoring Officer  

   
STC15 PRESS RELEASE- COMMUNITIES MINISTER  
  
  The Committee received a report of the Strategic 

Director, Resources which advised them of a recent press 
release from the Communities Minister, Andrew Stunell, 
which set out his views on the future of the Standards 
regime. 
 

In the press release, Mr. Stunell indicated that serious 
misconduct for personal gain would become a criminal 
offence, and pointed out that the Government would 
legislate to ensure that, whilst abusing a position for 
personal gain would result in criminal sanctions, ineffective 
or irresponsible behaviour would be a matter for the 
electorate rather than Standards for England. The 
Committee were advised that a newly empowered Local 
Government Ombudsman would investigate incompetence 
on behalf of local people. However, Mr Stunnell also said 
that the Government would legislate to make it clear that 
Councillors could campaign and vote freely on their issues.  

 
The Committee discussed the procedures that were 

in place for handling complaints and Ombudsman 
investigations within Halton Borough Council. The 
Monitoring Officer agreed to provide the Committee with a 
copy of the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter. 
 
 RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Monitoring Officer  

   
STC16 STANDARDS FOR ENGLAND - ROUNDUP  
  
  The Committee received a report of the Strategic 

Director, Resources on a Standards for England roundup. 
 

At the September meeting of the Committee, the 
Monitoring Officer reported verbally on the headlines from 

 

Page 2



the Standards for England Bulletin No. 48, attached as an 
Appendix to the report. 
 

The primary thrust of the Bulletin was the future of 
Standards for England and the Standards Framework. 
Standards for England set out how they proposed to carry 
out business pending further legislation on their future. In 
addition, guidance had been issued on the acceptance of 
complaints by Standards for England, the abolition of the 
need for quarterly monitoring returns and the process for the 
re-appointment of Independent Members  

 
 RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

 
   
STC17 RECENT CASE SUMMARIES FROM STANDARDS FOR 

ENGLAND 
 

  
  The Committee received a report of the Strategic 

Director, Resources on recent case summaries from 
Standards for England. 
 
 The Committee noted and discussed the contents of 
cases from West Devon Borough Council and Portsmouth 
City Council. 
 
 RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

 

   
STC18 DRAFT ACTION LIST  
  
  The Committee’s Action List was attached for 

information. 
 
 In considering the Action List, the Committee noted 
that the development of the actions would be dictated by 
legislation relating to the future of the Standards regime, as 
well as the impact of financial constraints on local authority 
budgets. 
 
 RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

 

   
 
 

Meeting ended at 3.35 p.m. 

Page 3



REPORT TO:  Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 5th January 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Recent Case Summaries from Standards for 

England 
 
WARD: N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To make Members aware of recent decisions in cases where 

breaches of the Code have been alleged in other authorities. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the report be noted 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Members’ attention is drawn to case summaries which have recently 

been published on Standards for England’s website. 
 
3.2 These cases refer to North Tyneside MBC and Oldham MBC. 
 
3.3 The summaries are provided for the information of Members and are 

intended to inform discussion at the meeting. 
 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton Borough Council 
 
6.2 None 
 
6.3 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton  
 
6.4 None 
 
6.5 A Healthy Halton 
 
6.6 None 

Agenda Item 3Page 4



 
6.7 A Safer Halton 
 
6.8 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
6.9 None 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key issues have been identified which require control measures 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 The report of itself does not contain specific Equality and Diversity  
 issues. 
  
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND APERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 None 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



REPORT TO:  Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 5th January 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Abolition of the Standards Boards Regime 
 
WARD: N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To make Members aware of recent correspondence about the future 

of the Standards Regime. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the report be noted. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Members will recall that at the last meeting of the Committee, 

consideration was given to a press release from the Communities 
Minister setting out  his views on the future of the Standards Regime.   

 
3.2 The matter has now moved on to a certain extent, and Members’ 

attention is drawn to a letter dated 30th November 2010 to Standards 
Committee Chairs, from the Chair of Standards for England.  This 
letter includes a letter to him dated 15th October 2010 from Bob Neill 
MP, the Local Government Minister and is appended to this report. 

 
3.3 In addition to the proposed abolition of Standards for England, the 

First Tier Tribunal. (Local Government Standards in England) would 
lose jurisdiction over Member conduct. The Government also intends 
to remove the National Code of Conduct for Councillors and the 
requirement to have a Standards Committee.  Councils would be able 
to choose whether or not they wish to have a Local Code or a 
Standards Committee, which would be an ordinary Committee of the 
Authority and therefore not need to have independent representation.  
In the event of a Council choosing to have a Standards Committee, 
then it would no longer have the power to suspend a Member.  The 
Government proposes that there will be a new criminal offence 
created related to failure to register or declare interests.  It is not 
intended that the functions of Standards for England will transfer to 
any other body. 

 
 
 
3.4 The Localism Bill published on 13th December 2010 introduces these 

proposals into the legislative framework.  The Bill confirms that 
Councils will be able to adopt a non-statutory code and will have a 

Agenda Item 4Page 16



duty to consider allegations of a breach of such a code, without 
statutory sanctions against an offending member.  Provided that 
Members do not commit a criminal offence, they will remain in Office 
until the electorate have had a chance to remove them at the next 
election.  Proposals for Electoral Recall to allow the removal of 
Councillors mid-term on evidence of serious misconduct are not 
included in the Bill. 

 
3.5 The Bill provides clarification of the rules on pre-determination and 

bias by stating that an indication by a Councillor that he or she takes 
particular view on a matter is not to be taken as evidence of a closed 
mind.  The intention is that the normal activities of a Councillor such 
as campaigning, talking with constituents, expressing views on local 
matters and seeking to gain support for those views should not lead 
to an unjust accusation of having a closed mind on an issue that may 
lead to legal challenge.  Government believes that this will give 
Councillors the assurance that they can campaign, discuss and vote 
on issues with confidence and so encourage more people to stand in 
local elections. 

 
3.6 It is anticipated that the Bill will receive Royal Assent in late 2011.  In 

the meantime, the present Standards Regime will continue to function 
in the normal manner, considering, investigating and determining 
allegations of misconduct until a fixed date which is likely to be two 
months after the Bill receives Royal Assent.  The effect of this is that 
until that appointed day, an allegation of misconduct can be made, 
but after the day, no further allegations can be made under the 
Standards Board Regime. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton Borough  
 
6.2 None 
 
6.3 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton  
 
6.4 None 
 
6.5 A Healthy Halton 
 
6.6 None 

Page 17



 
6.7 A Safer Halton 
 
6.8 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
6.9 None 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key issues have been identified which require control measures 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 The report of itself does not contain specific Equality and Diversity  
 issues. 
  
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND APERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 Published material  from Standards for England and Department of 

Communities and Local Government. 
 
 

Page 18



30 November 2010 

Dear colleagues

I would like to draw your attention to a letter sent to me from the Local Government 
Minister, Bob Neill MP about the Government proposals for the future of standards 
in local government. This letter has now been published on both our and CLG’s 
website. 

As you will know, since the Coalition Government announced its intention ‘to 
abolish the Standards Board regime’, there has been little detail available about 
what this would mean in practice. The letter from the Minister now sets out the 
proposition in greater detail. 

In brief, you will see that the proposal is that, alongside the abolition of Standards 
for England, the First Tier Tribunal (Local Government Standards in England) 
would lose jurisdiction over member conduct. The Government also intends to 
remove the national Code of Conduct for councillors and the requirement to have a 
standards committee. Instead it would be for councils themselves to choose 
whether or not they wish to have a local code or a standards committee (which 
would be an ‘ordinary committee’ of the authority and therefore not need to have 
independent representation).  Any standards committee would no longer have the 
power to suspend a member. There would also be a new criminal offence created 
relating to failure to register or declare interests. 

In the meantime, you will see that these proposals will need primary legislation. 
Our understanding is that the Decentralisation and Localism Bill, which would 
contain such provisions, will be introduced to Parliament by the end of the year. 
The current framework will continue in place until such time as the bill receives 
Royal Assent and the relevant provisions are enacted. Our understanding is that 

To: Standards Committee Chairs 

Page 19



this is likely to be some time in the summer or autumn next year, although exact 
timing will obviously depend upon Parliamentary progress of the bill as a whole. 
Consequently, in the meantime, as the Minister recognises, standards committees 
will continue to have a legal requirement to operate as now and, in particular, to 
continue to consider any allegations.

You will see that the Minister’s letter sets out, in some detail, the transition 
arrangements that they intend to apply to any cases which will be in the pipeline at 
the end of the framework. While these proposals obviously depend on 
Parliamentary approval, in brief, Standards for England would cease to handle 
cases from an Appointed Day (likely to be two months after the coming into force of 
the provisions). At that stage, all cases still open would be passed back to the 
relevant local authority to complete. Any cases with the Tribunal at that stage 
would be completed but no further references could be made to it. Any cases being 
handled locally would need to be completed locally after that date by the standards 
committee, with no power to pass them to Standards for England or the Tribunal, 
but no new allegations could be made after the Appointed Day. 

I hope that you find this helpful.

Yours Sincerely 

Robert Chilton 
Chair 

Page 20



Page 21



Abolition of the Standards Board regime 

The Standards Board regime 

The Coalition Agreement Our Programme for Government included the commitment 
to “abolish the Standards Board regime”. 

The Government considers that the Standards Board regime, consisting of a 
centrally prescribed model code of conduct, standards committees with the power to 
suspend a local authority member and regulated by a central quango was 
inconsistent with the principles of localism.  In addition there is a concern that the 
regime is a vehicle for vexatious or politically motivated complaints. 

The Government considers that it is the right and the responsibility of the electorate 
to determine who represents them and that the abolition of the regime will restore 
power to local people. 

Accordingly, given the interdependencies of the bodies, requirements and guidance 
that constitute the Standards Board regime, the Government is proposing to abolish 
the regime in its entirety. 

Subject to Parliament approving the necessary legislation, the changes are as 
follows:

  The Relevant Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001, which sets out the 
principles which govern the conduct of members and co-opted members of 
relevant authorities in England and police authorities in Wales, will be 
revoked.

  The Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2007 (S.I 2007/1159) 
which prescribes the model code of conduct to apply to members of relevant 
authorities, will be revoked. 

  The requirement for local authorities to have standards committees will be 
abolished.

  Standards for England (formally known as the Standards Board for England) 
will be abolished.  Established by the Local Government Act 2000 and the 
regulator for local authority standards committees, the Standards Board 
requires primary legislation to abolish it and its legislative functions.  None of 
the Standards Boards functions will be transferred to other bodies. 

Page 22



  The First-tier Tribunal (Local Government Standards in England), the 
independent judicial tribunal established as a disciplinary body to hear and 
determine references and appeals concerning the conduct of local authority 
councillors, will lose its jurisdiction over the conduct of local authority 
members.

It is intended to effect the abolition of the Standards Board regime through the 
Localism Bill.  It is anticipated that the Bill will be laid before Parliament in December 
and will receive Royal Assent late-2011. 

The present conduct regime (a model code governing local authority members’ 
conduct and enforced through local authority standards committees, regulated in turn 
by the Standards Board for England), will continue to function in a normal manner, 
considering, investigating and determining allegations of misconduct, until a fixed 
date (“the appointed day”), probably two months after the Bill receives Royal Assent,.

This means that until the appointed day, an allegation of misconduct can be made; 
after the appointed day, no further allegations of misconduct can be made under the 
standards board regime. It also means that at the appointed day, allegations will be 
in the process of investigation and, further, that appeals against sanctions will be 
pending. Transitional measures will be put in place to address this. 

Proposed transitional measures 

Any cases in the system at the appointed day will make their way through a 
transitional regime.  This would meet the expectation of those who had made 
allegations that their allegations would be properly dealt with. It also enables that if a 
member has an allegation made against them, they should have the opportunity to 
clear their name. 

The Government propose that any investigations being undertaken by Standards for 
England transfer, on the appointed day, to the local authority that referred the 
investigation.  It will be for that local authority to arrange for the conclusion of the 
investigation.  The local authority’s standards committee will remain established until 
the last complaint it is considering, referred either internally or from Standards for 
England, has been dealt with. 

Any cases with which the First-tier Tribunal (Local Government Standards in 
England) is dealing on the appointed day will be concluded by that tribunal. It will not 
receive any appeals against standards committee rulings after that date.

The right of appeal will not exist for those cases standards committees deal with as 
they work their way through the transitional system.  The Government considers that 
the risk of protracted proceedings justifies this approach.  The sanctions available to 
standards committees are significantly less severe than the sanctions available to 
the First-tier Tribunal (Local Government Standards in England). 

Further, the Government propose that the suspension sanction is removed from 
standards committees for the transitional period.  Hence the most a standards 

Page 23



committee could do is, for instance, to issue a councillor with a censure or a request 
that they undergo training. 

The conduct regime in a post-Standards Board world 

The Government is committed to maintaining high standards of conduct in office and 
will ensure that, in the absence of a statutory code of conduct, councillors do not 
abuse their office for personal gain by putting their personal interests before those of 
the general community or local area that they represent.  Members will be required 
to continue to register and declare personal interests and will not be allowed to use 
their position improperly for personal gain. The Government intend that wilful failure 
to comply with these requirements will constitute a criminal offence.  

The requirement for local authorities to adopt a model code of conduct and for local 
authority members to abide by that code will be abolished.  However, local 
authorities will be free to adopt their own, voluntary code of conduct should they so 
wish.

The requirement to maintain a standards committee will be abolished.  However, 
local authorities will be free, should they choose, to establish voluntary standards 
committees to consider complaints about the conduct of elected and co-opted 
members. Such committees will, according to councils’ local constitutions,  be able to 
censure but will not be able to suspend or disqualify members from council 
membership.

Published by the Department for Communities and Local Government

© Crown Copyright, December 2010 

ISBN: 978 1 4098 2684 2 

Page 24


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 Recent Case Summaries from Standards for England
	[Untitled]

	4 abolition of standards regime
	Letter to standards committee chairs 30 November 2010
	letter from bob neill1


